Public Document Pack

Date of meeting Tuesday, 16th December, 2014

Time 8.00 pm

Venue Committee Room 2, Civic Offices, Merrial Street,

Newcastle-under-Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 2AG

Contact Justine Tait Ext 2250

Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee

TO COMMENCE IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE CONCLUSION OF THE JOINT FINANCE, RESOURCES AND PARTNERSHIPS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND ENTERPRISE SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

AGENDA

PART 1 - OPEN AGENDA

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive Declarations of Interest from Members on items included in the agenda

2 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

(Pages 3 - 10)

To consider the minutes of the previous meeting of this Committee held on Wednesday 5th November 2014

3 Constitution Review Working Group (Contract Procedural (Pages 11 - 44)

Rules)

4 Revenue Budgets 2015/2016 - First Draft Savings Plan (Pages 45 - 52)

5 WORK PLAN (Pages 53 - 58)

To discuss and update the work plans to reflect current scrutiny topics

6 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Any member of the public wishing to submit a question must serve two clear days' notice, in writing, of any such question to the Borough Council.

7 URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100B (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

8 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Tuesday 13th January 2015, 7.00pm, Budget Scrutiny Café

Members: Councillors Fear, Mrs Hambleton, Huckfield, Jones, Mrs Peers, Rout,

Stringer, Sweeney, Taylor.J, Wallace (Vice-Chair) and Waring (Chair)

PLEASE NOTE: The Council Chamber and Committee Room 1 are fitted with a loop system. In addition, there is a volume button on the base of the microphones. A portable loop system is available for all other rooms. Should you require this service, please contact Member Services during the afternoon prior to the meeting.

Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training/development requirements from any of the items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the attention of the Democratic Services Officer at the close of the meeting.

Meeting Quorums :- 16+= 5 Members; 10-15=4 Members; 5-9=3 Members; 5 or less = 2 Members.

Officers will be in attendance prior to the meeting for informal discussions on agenda items.

FINANCE, RESOURCES AND PARTNERSHIPS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 5th November, 2014

Present:- Councillor Paul Waring – in the Chair

Councillors Fear, Jones, Rout, Stringer, Sweeney, Taylor. J and Wallace

and Holland as substitute for Mrs Peers

Portfolio Holder for Communications, Policy and Partnerships

Officers Executive Director, Resources and Support Services

Democratic Services Manager (for items 1 to 3 only)

Audit Manager (for items 1 to 3 only)
Business Improvement Manager

Scrutiny Officer

Apologies Councillors Huckfield, Mrs Hambleton and Mrs Peers

Head of Business Improvement, Central Services and

Partnerships

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor John Taylor declared an interest in item 3 Constitution Review Working Group, Section 2 Protocol for Conferring the title of Honorary Alderman as he had been granted the title but suspended due to being a serving Member of the Council.

1. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 1st September 2014 were agreed as a correct record subject to the following amendment:-

Item 8. UPDATE REPORT – CASE STUDY OF ACTIONS TAKEN WHERE A FOOD BUSINESS RECEIVE A POOR HYGIENE RATING

Q2. Were there any mechanisms to close down repeat offenders?

Answer 2 to be amended to read:-

If public health was at risk, with very high risk of activity in particular from pests or unfit food, processes would be put in place to close the business, voluntarily or through enforcement.

2. CONSTITUTION REVIEW WORKING GROUP

A number of recommendations were presented by the Democratic Services Manager, which the Constitution Review Working Group (CRWG) proposed and would be submitted to Full Council at its meeting in February 2015.

The CRWG consisted of four Members; Councillors Holland (Chair), Wallace, Jones and Mrs Braithwaite.

Revised Member Code of Conduct

It was reported by the Audit Manager that research was undertaken via the Standards Exchange and examples of other codes of conduct were obtained. Taking these into account a new code had been re-written to reflect best practice.

The main principles, in terms of standards of conduct, remained the same – these had been re-written to give more clarity.

The major change related to gifts and hospitality. Currently the value at which Members are required to record the receipt of any gift, benefit or hospitality was £100 this had been reduced to £10.00.

A Member advised it was a much improved document and agreed to the value of gifts and hospitality being reduced and welcomed the introduction of bullet points that had a point of reference.

Resolved:-

- (a) Members agreed to the redrafted Member Code of Conduct
- **(b)** That the Member Code of Conduct be submitted to Full Council at its meeting in February 2015 following consideration by the Standards Committee

Protocol for Conferring the title of Honorary Alderman

It had been suggested from the CRWG that an Honorary Alderman should at least:-

- Not be a serving Member of the Council
- Be a person of distinction who has rendered eminent services to the Council and the community
- Have served a period of not less than twelve years on the Council which may be continuous or discontinuous
- Have held a substantive office on the Council such as; Mayor, Committee Chair, Group Leader or Cabinet Member

There was presumption that where the criteria are met by a nominated individual the appointment at Full Council would be agreed without debate. Due process would be undertaken with the aim of ensuring that this would happen.

A Member commented that bullet points two and four were vague.

The Chair of the CRWG advised that the process had been discussed and it was important to make it non-political. It would have to go to a special meeting of the Council called for this purpose. In relation to bullet point two this wording was used by other Councils and was within the legislation.

It was commented that services to the community could be taken into account and for bullet point four to be amended to read "Have normally held a substantive office on the Council such as; Mayor, Committee Chair, Group Leader or Cabinet Member" to give flexibility.

Members voted in favour to include the word "normally".

Page 4

Resolved:- To include the word "normally" in bullet four and for a review to be carried out after twelve months

Scrutiny Chairs and Vice Chairs Group

Most of the work was carried out electronically and the overall feeling was that diarised meetings of the new informal committee was not required. Should any concern arise regarding duplication or overlap of a subject matter the Scrutiny Officer or Democratic Services Manager would liaise with the relevant Chairs to arrange an ad hoc meeting with the relevant Chairs or, in extreme circumstances, a meeting of all the Chairs and Vice Chairs.

A Member advised that when Scrutiny Chairs report back to Full Council, to be presented with the report two days prior was not enough time to analyse the content. It was asked if guidance could be produced on how Scrutiny Chairs were to present a report to Full Council.

The Chair of the CRWG informed that the Mayor was considering different options on presenting a report to Full Council, with possibly a working group being established.

Resolved:- That it be recommended to Full Council diarised meetings of the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice Chairs Group are not required.

Urgency Provision

Presently in the Constitution there are two duplicate sections relating to matters of urgency and it was recommended that both sections are replaced with one new urgency clause.

A Member asked for the words "or Committee" to be added in the first sentence to read "When a decision regarding a Cabinet *or Committee* function requires"

The Chair agreed that the new provision was easier to interpret than the existing.

The Audit Manager was thanked by the Chair of the CRWG for her work in producing the above recommendations of the Working Group.

Resolved:- That the recommendation be presented to Full Council.

Contract Procedural Rules (Appendix 12)

This was submitted as a late Supplementary item.

Resolved:- That this item is presented to the next meeting of Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrutiny to be held on Tuesday 16th December 2014.

3. PARISH/TOWN COUNCILS - REVIEW OF CONCURRENT FUNDING TASK AND FINISH GROUP

3

The Chair of the Parish/Town Councils – Review of Concurrent Funding Task and Finish Group presented a report to Committee, prior to submitting to Cabinet.

Face to face meetings were held with nine out of the ten Town/Parish Councils, Betley, Balterley and Wrinehill were the exception, but the relevant information had

still been obtained. A good deal of good practice was found and, to a certain extent, the Council was getting very good value for money.

The first question that had been raised was "are people being doubly taxed?" the answer was "yes". The key facts found was that the Council had no legal obligation to award this grant to any Parish Council. Government funding to the Borough Council had been reduced by over 51% and would continue. The grant to Parish Councils had remained the same.

The third finding was seven out of the ten Parish Councils increased their amount of assets between March 2013 and March 2014.

The recommendations were:-

- 1. Doing Nothing
- 2. Reduce by 50%
- 3. Abolish S136 Monies
- 4. Establish a more closely monitored system

Option 4 was the favoured option by the Task and Finish

Most of the Parish Councils had in excess of twelve months' assets in reserve. A reasonable amount would be between three to twelve months gross expenditure.

The Task and Finish Group was, therefore, recommending that a cross-party monitoring group should be established. Prior to any grant money being issued in April 2015 individual Towns and Parishes would need to provide this group with proof that the grant for 2014/2015 had been used in full and for its intended purpose. Failure to do so could result in an amount, equivalent to any shortfall in 2013/2014, being deducted from the grant for 2015/2016. This could be used as a model for the issue of S136 monies in future years.

A presentation was carried out at the Parish Forum held on Tuesday 14th October 2014 and the above recommendations were generally approved.

The Group also remained concerned at the level of cash assets held by Town and Parish Councils. It was recognised that reserves needed to be held for emergencies and money had to be set aside for large scale maintenance.

It was, therefore, recommended that by April 2016 general reserves should be set at a level of six months of gross expenditure.

One Member put forward a further proposal; up to £7,000 be awarded to every Town/Parish Council, any additional money must be justified and an application submitted.

Option 4 was largely agreed with all Members as the process would be more accountable.

There seemed to be an anomaly of reserves and assets and the saving of reserves needed to be reserves not cash reserves and if the S136 was to be abolished it should be executed over a period of time.

Page 6

Clarity was asked to be provided of what were agreed as concurrent functions when the S136 grants were established in 1974. The Executive Director Resources and Support Services agreed to obtain the information produced in 1974.

Resolved:-

- (a) That the report is submitted to Cabinet on the 14th January 2015.
- **(b)** That the Task and Finish Group continue its work looking at the future policy relating to the S136 grant.

4. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2015/16 TO 2019/2020

The Executive Director, Resources and Support Services introduced the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2015/16 to 2019/20 which had been approved by Cabinet on the 15th October 2014.

The MTFS identified significant budgetary shortfalls over the next five years that would need addressing with robust financial and budget strategies.

Housing is an important source of economic growth. For each new build home, conversion and long-term empty home which had been brought back into use, the Council received a New Homes Bonus Grant for six years, however, thereafter funding would decline but would fluctuate as new properties were built.

The budget options developed by the Budget Review Group would be available for consideration by December and the MTFS amended, where necessary, to take account of them. Cabinet would consider the proposals in the form of a draft budget for 2015/2016 at its meeting on the 14th January 2015 and then submitted back to Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee on the 21st January 2015.

The Strategy was discussed and comments noted.

Resolved:- For Committee to receive a copy of the draft budget for 2015/2016 at its meeting on the 21st January 2015

5. QUARTER 2 FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The Executive Director, Resources and Support Services advised on the financial position for quarter two 2014/2015.

At this point in the financial year the general budget showed an adverse variance.

The main reasons for the overall adverse variance to date are:-

- (a) Overtime. Negotiations with the Trade Unions had been ongoing and a collective agreement was due to be signed imminently.
- (b) Jubilee 2. Problems are still being experienced with mechanical issues of the
- (c) Kidsgrove Sports Centre was also operating at a net overspend due to income shortfall.

It was advised by a Member that comments, which are received from schools who use these facilities, should be observed. The Executive Director, Resources and Support Services informed he would relay these comments back to the Officers.

5

The Business Improvement Manager advised on the financial and performance management to the end of quarter two (July – September) 2014. The report would be presented to Cabinet on the 12th November 2014.

The proportion of the indicators that had met their target during this period stood at 65 per cent.

Nine indicators were off target for this quarter.

Indicator 1.10 - The number of community volunteer groups/hours spent caring for their local green spaces and neighbourhoods had reduced significantly to 585.5 hours. This was due to an external partner reducing the resource they were putting in to this initiative.

Indicator 2.6 – Percentage of minor planning applications determined within time. The drop in performance was a direct consequence of loss of staff, although there had, subsequently, been an internal appointment of a Senior Planning Officer which would help to rebuild the capacity of the service.

Indicator 3.6 – Number of people accessing leisure and recreational facilities. There had been a few closures of the swimming pools this quarter due to mechanical failures.

A Member raised concern on the percentage of minor planning applications not reaching the target. The Portfolio Holder for Communications, Policy and Partnerships informed he would feedback the comments to the Portfolio Holder for Planning and Assets and the Head of Planning.

Resolved:- To continue to monitor and scrutinise performance.

6. WORK PLAN

That the following items are added to the work plan:-

Tuesday 16th December 2014

Joint meeting with Economic Development and Enterprise to discuss the Asset Management Strategy and Capital Strategy 2015/2016

21st January 2015

Draft Revised Capital Budget 2015/2016

Also the Parish and Town Council – Review of Concurrent Funding Task and Finish Group be retained.

7. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

No questions had been received from the public

8. URGENT BUSINESS

No urgent business was raised.

Page 8 6

9. **DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING**

Tuesday 16th December 2014, 6.30pm joint meeting with Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee in the Chamber to discuss the Asset Management Strategy and Capital Strategy 2015/2016, followed by a separate meeting of the Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee.

COUNCILLOR PAUL WARING
Chair

7

This page is intentionally left blank

1. REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION

Submitted by: Head of Business Improvement, Central Services and Partnerships

Head of Internal Audit & Monitoring Officer

Portfolios: Communications, Policy & Partnerships

Finance & Resources

Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

To improve the effectiveness and usability of the Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council (NULBC) Constitution and to ensure that it is both up to date and legally compliant.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Finance, Resources & Partnerships Scrutiny Committee reviews the updated version of Appendix 12 (Contract Procedural Rules) of the Constitution prior to consideration of Appendix 12 by Full Council.

Reasons

The updated Appendix 12 will improve the effectiveness and usability of the NULBC Constitution and to ensure that it is both up to date and legally compliant. It should also be noted that further changes are likely to be required to the Constitution after central government adopts the new 2014/24/EU Public Sector Directives scheduled for the autumn of 2014.

1. Background

- 1.1 The current Borough Council Constitution is based on the 'modular' Constitution issued in 2000 by the former Office of the Deputy Prime Minister. The modular constitution concept was introduced by central government in 2000 to provide draft model constitutions to local authorities around the new leadership models introduced by the Local Government Act 2000. The model was adapted in Newcastle to suit the particular arrangements of this Council at the time of the 2000 Act.
- 1.2 At the Transformation and Resources Committee meeting on 7th June 2010 it was resolved to set up a Member Working Group to review the existing Constitution. The initial purpose of the review was to improve the Constitution in order to enhance understanding of the Constitution and accessibility to its provisions amongst elected Members, Council officials and the general public through recommending amendments and the removal of unnecessary provisions.
- 1.3 On 16th May 2012, the Full Council resolved to adopt amendments to the Constitution as recommended by the Constitutional Review Working Group and also resolved that the Working Group should continue to review the Constitution on a rolling basis and that the Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee (now known as Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee) should oversee this review process

1.4 As part of this ongoing review of the Constitution, the Council's Standing Orders in Relation to Contracts (Appendix 12 of the Constitution) have been examined. The Standing Orders document is currently split into three parts:

Part I – Extract from Statutes;

Part II – Standing Orders for the Regulation of the Proceedings of the Council and Committees; and

Part III - Standing Orders in Relation to Contracts.

Following initial discussions between the Borough Council's Business Improvement Manager, the Monitoring Officer and the Legal Practice Administrator, Standing Orders relating to Contracts have been reviewed.

- 1.5 As a result of this review, it was found that there was duplication in Parts I and II of information already in Constitution.
- 1.6 Following on from this review of Parts I and II, consideration was also given to Part III Standing Orders in relation to Contracts and it was agreed that these should be updated and renamed Contract Procedure Rules (Appendix 12) so as to align with the format of the current Constitution. Parts I and II would therefore be discarded.
- 1.7 In accordance with current best practice, Appendix 12 has now been updated and amended and a copy is attached as an appendix.

2. **Issues**

- 2.1 The Council's Constitution can be described as the set of rules that govern how the Council operates, how its decisions are made and the procedures it needs to follow in conducting its business.
- 2.2 Since its inception, the approach taken by the Constitutional Review Working Group has been to:
 - (i) Remove obvious duplications;
 - (ii) Identify contradictions and remove those parts of the Constitution that do not accord with good practice or with the law;
 - (iii) Remove obsolete, inaccurate or unnecessary references to law and/or processes;
 - (iv) Change and update dates and time specific items;
 - (v) Use the up to date officer and committee structures and be clear and accurate about, for example, job titles;
 - (vi) Simplify wording and improve the indexing of the document;
 - (vii) Use flowcharts rather than narrative where appropriate and where necessary; and
 - (viii) Take best practice from a number of other constitutions of both local authorities and also other comparable organisations
- 2.3 Based on these review principles, it is therefore recommended that the updated version of Appendix 12 Contract Procedure Rules, as outlined in this report is adopted by the Borough Council and that the Constitution of the Borough Council is amended accordingly.

3. Options Considered

3.1 It is a legal requirement that the Council has a constitution that accords with the law.

3.2 Therefore, based on the points outlined in this report, it is <u>recommended</u> that the changes proposed to the Council's Standing Orders relating to Contract Procedure Rules are adopted by Full Council and that the Council's Constitution is amended accordingly.

3.3 No other options are recommended as part of this report, as to do so would potentially undermine the effectiveness of the Council's Constitution and the processes; procedures and frameworks contained within it.

4. Proposal

4.1 That the Borough Council adopts the amendments to Appendix 12 of the Constitution as outlined in this report.

5. Reasons for Preferred Solution

5.1 To improve the effectiveness and usability of the Borough Council's Constitution and to ensure that it is both up to date and legally compliant.

6. Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strategy and Corporate Priorities

- 6.1 The Constitution is a codified document which governs the way in which the Council works.
- These changes outlined in this report are intended to enable the general public, elected Members and Council officials to engage more effectively with the decision making processes of the Council and also to ensure that all processes undertaken by the Borough Council are lawful.
- 6.3 Improvements to these processes are a key part of the Council's corporate priority of becoming a Co-operative Council.
- 6.4 An effective constitution also contributes to the overall ethical wellbeing of the Council as a public organisation, and helps to engender a culture of high ethical standards, which the general public and the Council's key partners can have confidence in. This also contributes to the Council's corporate priority of becoming a Co-operative Council.

7. Legal and Statutory Implications

7.1 The Council is required by common law and statute (principally the Local Government Acts 1972 and 2000, and the Local Government and Housing Act 1989) to regulate its proceedings and to have an up to date constitution which is fit for purpose.

8. **Equality Impact Assessment**

8.1 Where either potential or actual impact on issues of equality and diversity have been identified it they have been addressed.

9. Major Risks

9.1 The major risk around this area of work is that failure to regularly review and update the Council's Constitution may mean that the document will become inaccessible; procedures will become inefficient; decisions will be vitiated for reason of unlawful procedure; and that a combination of these factors may lead to consequential damage to the reputation, finances and corporate/service objectives of the Council.

3

10. **Financial Implications**

10.1 No significant additional resources will be required in relation to the recommendations outlined in this report. The Constitution provides the framework and rules for ensuring value for money and links with the Council's financial regulations.

11. **Key Decision Information**

- 11.1 The Council's Constitution covers all decisions made by the Council and its elected Members. As a consequence, therefore, the provisions of the Constitution cover all the Borough's wards.
- 11.2 The majority of the provisions set out in the Constitution deal with non-Executive matters.

4

APPENDIX 12

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

Contents

1.	INTRODUCTION	1
2.	COMPLIANCE WITH CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES	3
3.	NORMAL PROCEDURE	5
4.	EXCEPTIONS TO CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES	10
5.	CONTRACTS UNDER £5,000	12
6.	CONTRACTS VALUED £5,000 TO £50,000 INCLUSIVE	12
7.	CONTRACTS OVER £50,000	13
8.	CONTRACTS OVER EU THRESHOLDS	15
9.	RECEIPT AND CUSTODY	17
10.	OPENING TENDERS	17
11.	LATE TENDERS	18
12.	ALTERATIONS	18
13.	ACCEPTANCE	19
14.	NEGOTIATIONS FOLLOWING RECEIPT OF TENDERS	20
15.	NOMINATED/NAMED SUB-CONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS	21
16.	ENGAGEMENT OF CONSULTANTS	21
17.	CONTRACT CONDITIONS	22
18.	EXTENDING EXISTING CONTRACTS	24
19.	CANCELLATION OR DETERMINATION	25
20.	SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTS	25
21.	REGISTER OF CONTRACTS	25
22.	SEALING	26
23.	BONDS AND PARENT COMPANY GUARANTEES	26
24.	OTHER REQUIREMENTS	27
ANN	EX 1	
EXC	EPTIONS TO CONTRACT PROCEDURAL RULES – TEMPLATE	29

1. INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 Procurement is the process by which the Council manages the acquisition of all its goods, services and works. It includes the identification of need, consideration of options, the actual procurement process and the subsequent management and review of the contracts.
- 1.2 These Contract Procedure Rules provide a corporate framework for the procurement of all goods, services and works for the Council. The Rules are designed to ensure that all procurement activity is conducted with openness, probity and accountability. Above all, the Rules are designed to ensure that the Council obtains value for money and the required level of quality and performance in all contracts that are let.
- 1.3 In these Rules, the following definitions apply:

Contract Means any form of contract, agreement or other arrangement

for the supply of goods, services or work

Council Means the Borough Council of Newcastle-under-Lyme

Code of Practice Means the Council's Code of Practice for Procurement – this

includes accompanying guidance

Services Includes all services which the Council purchases or obtains

including advice, specialist consultancy work, agency staff, etc.

Works Includes all construction and repairs in respect of physical

assets (buildings, etc.)

Strategic Procurement

Team

Means officers responsible for strategic procurement support (Business Improvement Manager and/or Business

Improvement Officer Performance and Procurement)

Lead Officer The officer within the Council taking the lead on the

procurement exercise

Chief Officer(s) Means (one of) the following:

Chief Executive

Executive Director (Operational Services)

Executive Director (Regeneration and Development) Executive Director (Resources and Support Services)

who together as a group form the Council's Executive Management Team (EMT) and have responsibility for the day

to day management of the Council and its officers

Section 151 Officer Is a statutory position under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. The Executive Director (Resources

and Support Services) currently holds this position

Monitoring Officer Is a statutory position under Section 5 of the Local

Government and Housing Act 1989, as amended by

Schedule 5, paragraph 24 of the Local Government Act 2000. The Audit Manager currently holds this position and the Democratic Services Manager is the Deputy Monitoring

Officer

Service The relevant Service area within the Council

Head of Service Means a senior manager with responsibility for the Service

Business Manager Means a manager with responsibility for a business area within

the Service

Authorised Officer Means any officer who by the nature of his or her job, or as

directed by a Head of Service or Business Manager, is

authorised to place orders

Financial Regulations

Means the financial regulations issued by the Section 151

Officer and approved by the Council

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Means a common global language for business affairs so that company accounts are understandable and comparable

across international boundaries.

Rules Means these Contract Procedure Rules

Cabinet Means the part of the Council which is responsible for most

day-to-day decisions

Constitution This document sets out how the Council operates, how

decisions are made and the procedures which are followed

Cabinet Portfolio

Holder

Means a member of the Cabinet with a specific area of responsibility (known as a portfolio) to ensure greater

accountability for the decisions taken by Cabinet.

TUPE TUPE is an acronym for 'Transfer of Employment (Protection

of Employment)' Regulations 2006 (amended in 2014). These Regulations preserve employees' terms and conditions when a business or undertaking (or part of one) is transferred to a new

employer

1.4 These Rules apply to all contracts whereby the Council pays for goods, services or works. The Public Procurement Regulations do not apply to income based contracts (arrangements whereby the Council gets an income from a third party). However, it is good practice to always follow the principles of these Contract Procedure Rules when awarding such arrangements. Advice must always be sought from the Section 151 Officer when dealing with income based arrangements

- 1.5 All values referred to in these Rules are exclusive of VAT
- 1.6 Any dispute regarding interpretation of these Rules shall be referred to the Section 151 Officer for resolution

- 1.7 The Section 151 Officer shall undertake a formal review of the Rules on an annual basis
- 1.8 These Rules do not apply to:
 - (a) Contracts of employment
 - (b) Contracts relating to interest in land
 - (c) The engagement of Counsel or other legal advisers; or
 - (d) Contracts relating to Treasury Management entered into by the Section 151 Officer in pursuance of the powers delegated to him under the Council's Constitution
- 1.9 Whereas the titles of Chief Officers are shown in these Rules, their nominees may undertake the responsibilities listed during their principal's absence provided they have written authority from the relevant Chief Officer to do so. This shall not be the case where statute law, or resolution of the Council, or a decision of the Council's Cabinet, requires otherwise.

2. <u>COMPLIANCE WITH CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES</u>

2.1 The provisions contained in these Rules are subject to the statutory requirements of both the European Union and the United Kingdom Government. The letting and content of contracts shall conform to all statutory requirements and be subject to any over-riding directives of the European Union relating to contracts and procurement. This Rule cannot be waived since a failure to comply with European legislation may result in a legal challenge with consequent reputational and financial risk

In addition, where specific statutory procedures are prescribed for certain types of procurement or contract, then these procedures must be followed at all times. In any case where the Council approves, through a resolution of its Cabinet, to have separate Procedure Rules for particular types of contract, then such Rules (which must be prepared in consultation with the Chief Executive, the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer will take precedence over these Rules.

2.2 Subject to Rules 2.1 and 2.3, every contract for the supply of goods and services and for the execution of works made by or on behalf of the Council shall comply with these Rules, the Council's Financial Regulations and the Council's Procurement Strategy. All Council employees and organisations or companies engaged to act in any capacity to procure, manage or supervise a contract on behalf of the Council must be provided with a copy of (or access to) these Rules and comply with them

Any exception to this Rule may only be made with the written authority of a Chief Officer or the Monitoring Officer

2.3 A written record of any exception from the provisions of these Rules shall be made by a Chief Officer or his or her nominee and the Monitoring Officer. An 'exceptions form' must be completed for every instance where a Chief Officer approves an exception from these Rules. The form must adequately document the reasons for the exception and an electronic copy must be retained by the Service concerned. A copy of each completed form is automatically forwarded to the Chief Officer concerned, the Monitoring Officer, Internal Audit and the Strategic Procurement Team where a record of all exceptions is maintained. The Chief Officer concerned is responsible for keeping the appropriate Cabinet Portfolio Holder informed

- 2.4 All procurement activity must be undertaken with regard to high standards of probity and in accordance with the relevant sections of the Council's Constitution. All officers should manage procurement activity in a manner which avoids any conflicts of interest, and if any conflicts of interest do arise, these should be referred immediately to the Monitoring Officer, and recorded in the Register of Disclosures and Pecuniary Interests by Officers, which is kept in the office of the Legal Practice Administrator
- 2.5 The procurement of goods, services and works must comply with UK and European Union public procurement legislation where applicable. Where such legislation is applicable and any conflict with these Rules arises, EU Directives and/or UK legislation take precedence over these Rules. Current regulations require tenders to be advertised in the EU Journal where the value exceeds (as at January 2014 values):
 - (a) £4,322,012 for works, and
 - (b) £172,140 for the purchase of goods and services

In estimating relevant values, officers shall have regard to the rules addressing aggregation. The estimated value payable over the life of the contract or, in instances where the total contract value is difficult to estimate, the approximate monthly value of the contract, multiplied by 48. Requirements must be calculated based on all Council spend (i.e. the corporate requirement rather than individual service needs) and must not be divided into two or more smaller purchases as this is in breach of the aggregation rules

Further detail in relation to aggregation can be found in the Public Contract Regulations 2006

2.6 Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring processes are in place to comply with these regulations within their own Service.

2.7 Partnerships

These Rules apply to any proposal for the Council to become involved in a joint venture or partnership, including the monitoring of any such arrangement

- (a) In relation to the Rules, a joint venture or partnership includes any arrangement involving one or more organisations in addition to the Council through which either a specific project or services within any of the functions of the Council are to be provided, and
- (b) Provides a role for the Council or any of its Members or officers in whatever structure is used to deliver the project or services involved (such structures may include, but are not limited to, companies, trusts and management committees).
- 2.8 These Rules apply to any proposal for the Council to become involved in a joint venture or partnership, including the monitoring of any such arrangement
 - (a) In relation to the Rules, a joint venture or partnership includes any arrangement involving one or more organisations in addition to the Council through which

- either a specific project or services within any of the functions of the Council are to be provided; and
- (b) Provides a role for the Council or any of its Members or officers in whatever structure is used to deliver the project or services involved (such structures may include, but are not limited to, companies, trusts and management committees)
- 2.9 Before any consideration is given to the Council entering into a joint venture with the private sector or a strategic service delivery partnership with any external organisation and in particular before any detailed negotiations are entered into or before any contract is made or undertaking given by or on behalf of the Council in relation to a joint venture or partnership, the Chief Officer concerned must submit detailed information concerning the proposed joint venture or partnership to the Chief Executive. The Chief Executive will give consideration to the proposed joint venture in accordance with these Rules. On receipt of the detailed information above, the Chief Executive will liaise with the relevant Chief Officer(s) or his/her representative(s) to ensure that an appropriate project board is convened
- 2.10 Procurement processes for strategic partnerships and PFI projects must include, where relevant:
 - a) The issue of an information memorandum to prospective bidders setting out the background to the project, the Council's objectives and an outline of the procurement process and timetable, with roles and responsibilities made clear (the drafting of which can be supported by the Strategic Procurement Team)
 - b) An invitation to bidders to demonstrate their track record in achieving value for money through effective use of their supply chain, including the use of small firms. This should continue to be examined as part of contract management
 - c) A requirement on bidders which must be included in their invitations to tender (or negotiate for partnerships) to submit optional, priced proposals for the delivery of specified social benefits which are relevant to the contract and add value to the community strategy.

3. NORMAL PROCEDURE

- 3.1 These Rules relate to three categories of procurement based on the estimated value of the contract:
 - a) Up to £5,000
 - b) £5,001 to £30,000 (inclusive)
 - c) £30,001 £50,000 (inclusive)
 - d) In excess of £50,000
- 3.2 In all instances, goods, services or works must be obtained via appropriate existing approved arrangements where these exist. These include:
 - a) In-house services (for example facilities management)
 - b) Established corporate contracts and approved arrangements

c) For works (construction) related compliant frameworks where these are available for the Council to use

The following arrangements shall be used where it is considered that they provide value for money for the Council:

- d) Use of contracts which have been established by consortia of which are available to the Council (for example Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation (YPO); Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO) both being part of the Pro5 consortia)
- e) Direct purchasing from YPO, ESPO (i.e. products available from the catalogue)
- f) Approved nationally negotiated contracts (for example those arranged by Crown Commercial Services (CCS))
- g) Approved e-Procurement solutions
- h) For low value purchases, purchasing cards can be used provided they are not used with the intention of undermining the use of approved or corporate contracts or as a method of circumventing aggregation rules

Information relating to the above arrangements will be published regularly on the Council's intranet

Where the Council has an in-house service, external companies should not be used for these services unless the Head of Service (responsible for the in-house service) confirms specifically that they are unable to meet requirements on that occasion

Use of Council contracts shall be mandatory for the supply of the goods/services included in the contract specification

- 3.3 Orders and payments for goods, services and works shall be undertaken in accordance with Financial Regulations. Orders must be placed, using approved Council systems, in advance of the receipt of the goods/services and orders must be coded to appropriate account codes
- 3.4 Where the supply is of a significantly higher than normal value for the existing arrangement in Rule 3.2 for example for bulk purchases the Authorised Officer should consult with the Strategic Procurement Team to determine whether special rates should be sought or whether an alternative procurement procedure may be required
- 3.5 Prior to inviting tenders or quotations, the Authorised Officer must:
 - a) Ensure that there is not another arrangement which must be used instead, as per paragraph 3.2 above, and
 - b) For contracts where there is evident risk, and for all contracts over £50,000, produce and maintain a documented risk log for the procurement process and for the eventual contractual relationship. As a minimum this should analyse all risks, identify how the risks will be managed, the responsible officer(s) and the review periods as per the Council's procurement risk log template

- c) Consider at the outset, through the use of the procurement risk log, any equality and diversity, social, environmental, economic, ethical, health and wellbeing and workforce implications in respect of the provision of supplies, services or works
- d) In support of the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012, it should be considered at the outset, in the development of the procurement risk log, how the contract can improve the social, economic and environmental wellbeing of the Borough of Newcastle-under-Lyme, its citizens and businesses and this should be built into the contract where appropriate. The Service must be able to demonstrate that social value has been considered and, where applicable to the subject matter of the contract sought and achieved. The Service must also record that it considered whether it was appropriate to consult with stakeholders in respect of social value and the reasons for its decision
- e) Be satisfied that a specification (where appropriate), that will form the basis of the contract, has been prepared (the specification should be retained on the appropriate contract file held within the Service)
- f) Be satisfied that all key stakeholders have been identified and consulted, and their views represented in the procurement risk log, specification and contract documents
- g) Have prepared and documented an estimate of the whole life cost of the contract including (where appropriate) any maintenance and ongoing costs (the estimate should be retained on the appropriate contract file held within the Service)
- h) Ensure that all evaluation criteria (including sub-criteria) have been determined in advance, put into order of relative importance with weightings for each criteria and sub-criteria and published in the tender documentation
- i) Ensure that an appropriate procurement process is undertaken based on the whole life cost of the contract
- j) For all contracts, regardless of value, no person with a personal or financial interest in any of the bidders submitting proposals should be involved in evaluating quotations or tenders or involved in any way in influencing the decision as to which company is to be awarded the contract. A declaration of interest form must be completed by each officer involved in evaluating bids and held on file by the Lead Officer, where the Lead Officer is or forms part of the evaluation team the Monitoring Officer will be requested to hold declarations of interest on file
- k) Be satisfied that he or she has taken advice from the Strategic Procurement Team, Legal Services and Financial Services
- I) Be satisfied that he or she has the necessary authority to enter into the contract.
- 3.6 Before entering into a contract the Authorised Officer must:
 - (a) Have undertaken a due diligence process to ensure the proposed contract is robust
 - (b) Be satisfied about the technical capability of such proposed contractor

- (c) Ensure that these Rules and Financial Regulations have been complied with, and that the proposed contract represents value for money
- (d) For all contracts that exceed £30,001 and/or where deemed appropriate, the Authorised Officer shall undertake appropriate checks to ensure that the proposed contractor has the financial and resource capacity (taking account of contract value and risk) to perform the contract (unless the contractor has already been subjected to a recent satisfactory financial check). Financial vetting shall be undertaken by Internal Audit, who will advise on what, if any, security should be provided by the contractor. Under no circumstances must a company be eliminated from a procurement process on the basis of a credit reference check
- (e) The Chief Officer responsible for the contract must ensure that a suitably experienced and trained officer is identified to adequately manage the contract the Council enters into
- 3.7 In all instances, procurement shall be undertaken in accordance with the principles of Best Value, and in a manner that is non-discriminatory, transparent and fair
- 3.8 In instances where the Council's policy of payment settlement in 30 days will cause problems to a company or voluntary sector organisation, or early settlement will attract a discounted rate from the company, alternative settlement dates can be considered. Any company can request quicker payment terms by contacting the Council's relevant Authorised Officer

Payment in advance may be required by small businesses, social enterprise or voluntary sector organisations but it must be used with care to:

- a) Ensure that the agreement with the organisation protects the Council as far as possible
- b) Be satisfied that the risk is low and managed
- c) Be satisfied that the small company, social enterprise or voluntary sector organisation has to incur costs in advance and that this will place it in a financially difficult position
- d) Ensure that payments are charged to the appropriate financial year (this is particularly important with an advance payment)
- 3.9 The Council publishes on its website all items of expenditure on goods, services and works which exceed £500 in value. Prior to placing any order, officers must consider whether the expenditure can be justified. Orders must not be artificially split with the intention of bringing the value of each order below £500, or order less than is actually required
- 3.10 Contracts for goods, services and works shall be structured, where appropriate and within the legislative framework, to support and promote the policies and corporate priorities of the Council. In particular, where appropriate and subject to procurement law, officers should encourage and/or invite local suppliers to bid for Council contracts. Also, ensure that tenders are not framed in such way as to unnecessarily debar small and medium sized companies, the voluntary sector and social enterprises from bidding

3.11 Where available, tenders should be advertised on the regional procurement portal

NOTE: case law has established that, even when contract values fall below EU Procurement Directive thresholds (above which the full requirements of the Directives apply), contracting authorities must ensure a degree of contract advertising sufficient to ensure competition, to avoid discrimination on the grounds of nationality and allow the impartiality of procurement procedures to be reviewed. Advertising opportunities on the regional procurement portal supports compliance with this requirement

- 3.12 All tenders must be advertised and, where appropriate, be available for download (where available) on a regional procurement portal. Contract award notices shall also be published on the website in a timely manner following contract award. For procurements less than £5,000, the use of Micro; Small to Medium Enterprises and/or a voluntary sector and/or social enterprise directory should be used, where appropriate, to source potential voluntary sector suppliers to invite to quote (www.socialenterprisewm.org; www.seb2b.co.uk providing directories of social enterprises). In cases where a quotation process is deemed appropriate for a contract over £10,000, these should be placed on a regional procurement portal (if available). If this is not available, the 'My Tenders' website should be used for advertising contract opportunities
- 3.13 Where there are no arrangements in place as per 3.2 above, orders with a value of less than £5,000 should be placed with suppliers from the local area where possible, utilising an informal quotation process
- 3.14 All tenders advertised in the European Journal must be placed via an electronic system. Officers must ensure that entries into the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU) fully comply with requirements/guidance on producing notices for the European Journal. This is available from the Strategic Procurement Team
- 3.15 All EU notices for non-routine procurement MUST be referred, in advance of sending to the OJEU, to the Strategic Procurement Team for advice on wording
- 3.16 All quotes and tenders must be undertaken using the Council's standard template documentation, unless prior approval has been obtained from the Section 151 Officer or the procurement is construction related, where JCT/JCI templates are able to be used.
- 3.17 Any project to develop a strategic service delivery partnership (which may or may not involve a transfer of staff to an external organisation) shall be undertaken in accordance with the best practice guidance issued by the Communities and Local Government or other relevant guidance

http://mutuals.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Public%20Service%2 0Mutuals%20next%20steps.pdf) https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/83717/ 19284 Next Generation 3rd Online.pdf.

The Chief Executive must be notified prior to commencing any such initiative

3.18 Any project to develop a strategic service delivery partnership (which may or may not involve a transfer of staff to an external organisation) must be referred to the Council's Cabinet for:

- a) Initial approval to commence the project, and
- b) Approval to award the contract which must be supported by a robust business case
- 3.19 Any project which involves significant risk including: staff transfer, significant implications across a number of service areas or significant potential for reputational or financial risk, must be managed in an appropriate manner using Council approved project management methodology and progress reports must be provided to the Executive Management Team at key milestones, these to be agreed with the relevant Chief Officer
- 3.20 Evaluation of tenders and quotations must be based on whole life costs, or total cost of ownership, including environmental, social and economic benefits where relevant to the contract
- 3.21 The Council will achieve employment and skills outcomes through procurement where relevant to the purpose of a contract. Where relevant to the subject matter of the contract, the bidders' approach to tackling unemployment and creating training and apprenticeship opportunities should be built into the procurement process
- 3.22 Where the Council will own an asset as a result of a contract, the asset has to be recorded in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
- 3.23 Where these situations arise, the Section 151 Officer must be contacted in the early stages of the procurement process in order to identify any IFRS implications and record them appropriately.

4. EXCEPTIONS TO CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

- 4.1 Subject to statutory requirements, tenders need not be invited in accordance with these Rules in the following cases:
 - (a) In the case of the supply of goods:
 - (i) the goods or materials are proprietary articles and in the opinion of the appropriate Chief Officer no reasonably satisfactory alternative is available, or
 - (ii) the prices of goods or materials are wholly controlled by statutory bodies, trade organisations or Government Order and in the opinion of the appropriate Chief Officer no reasonable satisfactory alternative is available
 - (b) The work to be executed or the goods or services to be supplied are controlled by a statutory body
 - (c) The contract is for the execution of work or the supply of goods or services certified by the appropriate Chief Officer to be required so urgently as to preclude the invitation of tenders. The appropriate Cabinet Portfolio Holder shall be kept informed of such decisions

- (d) The purchase of a named or proprietary product required to be compatible with an existing installation as approved by the Authorised Officer
- (e) Where the contract, subject to the approval of the Section 151 Officer relates to security work where the publication of documents or details in the tendering process could prejudice the security of the works to be done
- (f) In any case of work to be executed or goods or services to be supplied the Authorised Officer, in consultation with the Section 151 Officer, decides that there can be no genuine competition
- 4.2 An 'exceptions form' (see Annex 1) must be completed for every instance where a Chief Officer approves an exception from these Rules for contracts with a total value of £5,000 or more, in accordance with 2.3 above
- 4.3 Nothing contained in the above exceptions exempts officers either from using the Council's internal services or from following established arrangements in accordance with Rule 3.2. Officers must ensure that the best possible balance of value for money and quality is obtained for the Council
- 4.4 Tenders need not be invited in accordance with these Rules where they have been undertaken by or on behalf of any consortium, collaboration or similar body, of which the Council is either a member or is able to access contracts for goods, services or works. Officers should ensure that any contracts let by such a consortium, collaboration or similar body are in accordance with UK and EU procurement directives and regulations and that the Council is legally able to access the arrangements. Advice should be sought from the Strategic Procurement Team
- 4.5 Where the Council acts as lead body on a consortium or collaborative arrangement, the procedures for tendering contained within these Rules shall be followed (including the delivery, opening and acceptance of tenders) unless those provisions are inconsistent with the method by which tenders are dealt with by the consortium, collaboration or other body concerned and are not detrimental to the Council
- 4.6 Where another body is acting on behalf of the Council, the Council is providing funding to another body to undertake a scheme or project or the Council is provided funding from another organisation, satisfactory processes must be put in place and followed. Advice must be sought from the Section 151 Officer
- 4.7 The budget required (both capital and revenue) over the lifetime of the goods/service/works being procured must be confirmed by the relevant budget holder prior to the commencement of any tender or quotation process

5. CONTRACTS UNDER £5,000

- 5.1 These rules, in general, do not apply to contracts of less than £5,000. However, Rules 3.2, 3.7, 3.8 and 3.9 and the following principles apply to all procurement activity, irrespective of value
- 5.2 Where Goods or Services are regularly required and arrangements illustrated in Rule 3.2 do not exist, these should be reported to the Section 151 Officer who will assess the need for appropriate arrangements to be put in place

- 5.3 Officers should order Goods and Services that are required through an arrangement illustrated in Rule 3.2. Unless otherwise approved by the relevant Chief Officer (for the in-house service), external businesses will not be used where the Council has its own in-house services
 - If a corporate contract cannot meet the reasonable needs of the Service, the Authorised Officer must inform the Section 151 Officer before using an alternative supplier
- 5.4 Procurement expenditure is monitored through the financial systems and a Service will be challenged on the use of non-contracted or inappropriate arrangements
- 5.5 It is good practice (for all but small value and routine purchases) to obtain a written quotation. All quotations to the value of £5,000 can be provided by way of an informal quotation i.e. the Authorised Officer obtaining electronic quotations and maintaining (electronic) file copies linked to the relevant procurement
- 5.6 The Authorised Officer (ICT) must be informed of any system or hardware related procurements, regardless of value.

6. CONTRACTS VALUED £5,000 TO £50,000 INCLUSIVE

- 6.1 Contracts that are estimated to be for amounts between £5,000 and £50,000 (inclusive) shall be let on a competitive basis, normally via a request for quotes, unless an arrangement under Rule 3.2 has already been established for the Goods, Services or Works required
- 6.2 A clear specification of requirements (identifying outputs or outcomes rather than inputs, unless there is a demonstrable need to specify inputs) should be produced and the Authorised Officer shall place the quotation on to (where available) a regional procurement portal. Where this is not available, the 'My Tenders' website should be used for advertising to support transparency and promotion of a competitive bidding process (in accordance with Rule 3.12)
- 6.3 A minimum of two (for contract values of £5,000 to £30,000) and three (for contract values of £30,001 to £50,000) companies shall be invited to submit a quotation through (where available) a regional procurement portal. Where this is not available the 'My Tenders' website) should be used for advertising to support transparency and promotion of a competitive bidding process
- 6.4 In every instance there shall be a record of the process which will include:
 - (a) the officer(s) undertaking the procurement process and taking the decisions
 - (b) a copy of the specification and risk register (for contracts less than £50,000, a risk register is only required where there is evident risk)
 - (c) copies of all tenders or quotations
 - (d) copy of the evaluation process and reasons for the decisions as to acceptance or rejection for every tender
 - (e) the award letter

- (f) copy of the final contract
- (g) copy of the contract review and management process including the officer responsible for on-going contract management
- (h) a quotation profile which should be completed with details of the bid values and subsequent award information.
- 6.5 All procurements for £5,000 and over will be recorded on the Council's Contracts Register.

7. CONTRACTS OVER £50,000 – INVITATION TO TENDER

- 7.1 For contracts whose estimated value is expected to be greater than £50,000 (but under current EU Procurement Thresholds) for Work, Materials, Goods or Services, the contract will be recorded on the Council's Contracts Register and the following tender procedures shall be adopted
- 7.2 The tendering procedure should follow the relevant EU prescribed time limits. Where there is no prescribed procedure, a closing date of between fourteen (14) and twenty-eight (28) days from the placing of the notice shall be given for reply
- 7.3 After the closing date the prescribed number of contractors, or where there is no prescribed number at least four chosen by the Authorised Officer, must be invited to tender. Where less than four suitable contractors express an interest, all should be asked to tender
- 7.4 The invitation to tender shall state that no tender will be considered unless it is received by the date and time stipulated on the Invitation to Tender
- 7.5 Contractors must be chosen by one of the following methods:
 - (a) selective tendering via open, restricted; or
 - (b) by way of a compliant framework agreement that the Council is authorised to use
 - (c) requesting tenders on behalf of a consortium, association or similar organisation of which the Council is a member following the rules of that organisation; or
 - (d) requesting tenders under the instructions of another authority for which the Council is acting as agent; or
 - (e) selecting a contractor from a list of contractors with a schedule of rates approved and selected by another authority for which the Council is acting as an agent
- 7.6 The invitation to tender must include details of the Council's requirements for the particular contract including:
 - (a) a form of tender, instructions to tenderers including a procurement timetable, evaluation criteria, financial reference requests, insurance, business continuity

questionnaire, health and safety checklists, return label and draft contract terms approved by the Council's Legal Team (all tenders should have the facility to be submitted electronically);

- (b) A specification that describes clearly the Council's requirements in sufficient detail to enable the submission of competitive offers. The EU rules with regard to specification shall be followed and these are set out in the EU Codes of Practice;
- (c) Pricing mechanism and instructions for completion and
- (d) Whether the Council is of the view that TUPE will apply
- (e) A requirement for tenderers to declare that the tender content, price or any other figure or particulars concerning the tender have not been disclosed by the tenderer to any other party (except where such a disclosure is made in confidence for a necessary purpose)
- (f) A requirement for tenderers to complete fully and sign all tender documents including a form of tender and certificates relating to canvassing and non-collusion. Where tender documentation is sent electronically, if selected, the tenderer may be required to submit the relevant signed documentation through conventional means
- (g) Notification that tenders are submitted to the Council on the basis that they are compiled at the tenderer's expense
- (h) The invitation to tender or quotation must state that the Council is not bound to accept any quotation or tender
- (i) The method by which any arithmetical errors discovered in the submitted tenders is to be dealt with, in particular whether the overall price prevails over the rates in the tender or vice versa
- 7.7 Except under the open procedure, all tenderers invited to tender or quote must be issued with the same information at the same time and subject to the same conditions. Any supplementary information must be given on the same basis
- 7.8 Where any public advertisement has not defined the award criteria, invitations to tender must state the award criteria in objective terms and where possible in descending order of importance.

7.9 Single Tenders

In exceptional circumstances, the relevant Chief Officer may decide that it is in the best interests of the Council:

- (a) that a single tender be invited for the execution of work from a contractor selected by it; or
- (b) that a contract be negotiated with a contractor currently engaged by the Council on the basis of rates and prices contained in an initial contract awarded by the Council following open competition

In any such case he/she may do so subject to setting out in writing the reasons for the decision which shall be kept centrally in the Service concerned. The appropriate Cabinet Portfolio Holder shall be kept informed, and a copy of the decision sent to the Cabinet

This provision cannot be used for contracts exceeding (in aggregate) the current EU thresholds.

8. CONTRACTS OVER EU THRESHOLDS

8.1 Where the value of the contract is likely to exceed the European threshold (taking account of the rules of aggregation), it must be tendered in accordance with the relevant European procurement directive and procurement regulations. The Authorised Officer should record, retaining a file note on the reasons for adopting the selected procurement route (i.e. open tender, restricted tender, competitive dialogue or negotiated procedure, accelerated procedure). The exception to this Rule is in cases where Goods, Services or Works can be obtained through a framework contract which has been established via the relevant EU procurement process (for example, Crown Commercial Service frameworks)

In estimating relevant values, officers shall have regard to the rules regarding aggregation (see Rule 2.5 above). Further detail in relation to aggregation can be found in the Public Contract Regulations 2006

- 8.2 Any decision to adopt the negotiated, competitive dialogue or accelerated procedure should first be referred to the Strategic Procurement Team and Section 151 Officer
- 8.3 The arrangements identified in Rule 3.2 shall be used provided the arrangement is clearly identified as relevant for high value contracts
- 8.4 When a restricted process is undertaken, a minimum of 5 companies will be shortlisted to submit tenders (where 5 suitable suppliers express an interest)
- 8.5 Standard template documentation must be used to structure tender processes and the documentation must be placed where available on the e-tender portal to allow any company to express an interest in bidding (in the case of the restricted or competitive dialogue procedures) or to complete an Invitation to Tender (in the case of an open procedure)
- 8.6 In every instance there shall be a record of the process which will include the following, plus any information that may be required for submitting annual reports to the Government or other agencies:
 - (a) the officer(s) undertaking the procurement process and taking the decisions
 - (b) the rationale for the procurement route taken (including open or restricted procedure if above EU thresholds)
 - (c) a copy of the specification and risk register
 - (d) copies of all tenders and all associated correspondence/clarification obtained during the tender period
 - (e) a copy of the evaluation process and reasons for the decisions as to acceptance or rejection for every tender
 - (f) the award and unsuccessful letters
 - (g) a copy of the final contract

(h) a copy of the contract review and management process including the officer responsible for on-going contract management

Tender award and unsuccessful letters must be in the approved template format and following the issue of these letters, any requests for further information or clarification must be dealt with promptly and a full audit trail must be kept of all such dialogue

All dialogue with bidders during the tender process must be dealt with using the e-tender regional portal to ensure that all bidders are provided with the same information at the same time in the process. Officers must not conduct separate dialogue using any other means with any company during the process without obtaining advice from the Strategic Procurement Team

- 8.7 In accordance with EC Procurement Directive 2004/18/EC, and subsequent amendments in the Public Procurement (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2011, any company responding to an EU tender shall be excluded from the tender process if it or its directors have been convicted of: conspiracy, corruption, bribery, fraud, money laundering, an offence in connection with the proceeds of criminal conduct or an offence in connection with the proceeds of drug trafficking. Any instances where a service has information relating to the above must contact the Audit Manager and Monitoring Officer for advice
- 8.8 Upon completion of the procurement process a formal contract award notice will be published in the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU)

8.9 **Single Tenders**

In exceptional circumstances, the relevant Chief Officer may decide that it is in the best interests of the Council:

- (a) that a single tender be invited for the execution of work from a contractor selected by it; or
- (b) that a contract be negotiated with a contractor currently engaged by the Council on the basis of rates and prices contained in an initial contract awarded by the Council following open competition

In any such case he/she may do so subject to setting out in writing the reasons for the decision which shall be kept centrally in the Service concerned. The appropriate Cabinet Portfolio Holder shall be kept informed, and a copy of the decision sent to the Cabinet

This provision cannot be used for contracts exceeding (in aggregate) the current EU thresholds.

9. RECEIPT AND CUSTODY

- 9.1 No tender will be considered unless it is either:
 - (a) Received via the e-tender system specifically set up for the purpose of receipt of the said tender. Receipt of bids through the system is preferred and bidders will be encouraged to submit electronically where possible

OR

- (b) Contained in a plain envelope which shall be securely sealed and shall bear the word 'TENDER' followed by the subject to which the tender relates and the number of the tender concerned, but shall not bear any distinguishing matter or mark to indicate the identity of the sender. Prospective tenderers shall be notified accordingly.
- 9.2 Subject to 9.1(b), tenders where the estimated value exceeds £50,000 shall immediately on receipt be consecutively numbered and remain in the custody of the Customer and ICT Business Manager until the time appointed for opening. Any officer receiving tenders shall indicate on the envelope the date and time of its receipt by him or her
- 9.3 Quotations, where the estimated cost does not exceed £50,000, may be addressed impersonally to the appropriate Chief Officer. In all cases such tenders shall remain in the custody of the Chief Officer to whom they are addressed until the time appointed for opening. The Chief Officer shall ensure that procedures are in place for recording date of receipt, opening and safe storage of such tenders
- 9.4 All tenders sought on behalf of external agencies where these are to be named as client under a subsequent contract may be addressed and opened in accordance with the procedure rules, regulations and written requirements of such external agency
- 9.5 Responses to Pre-qualification Questionnaires (PQQs) and quotations are not deemed to be tenders and should be returned to the originating officer, either via hard copy or electronically through the e-tender portal. Submissions and responses in respect of negotiated procedure tenders and PFI projects must also be returned via the e-tender portal.

10. **OPENING TENDERS**

- 10.1 Tenders received via e-tender shall be opened and recorded at one time and by one officer. Tenders received in hard copy format shall be opened and recorded by not less than two officers designated for that purpose by the Monitoring Officer
- 10.2 Tenders submitted in hard copy must be opened by the same officers and at the same time as documents received via the e-tender portal
- 10.3 In respect of tenders with a value in excess of £50,000, any Member of the Council who so wishes may be present at the opening. Internal Audit also has the right to attend any tender opening
- 10.4 Where external agencies contribute to the overall funding of a project, representatives of such agencies are permitted to attend at the opening of tenders. They are allowed to make a note of the tenders and to also receive a copy of the subsequent written report on tenders received, provided that such representatives agree to observe commercial confidentiality and be bound by the confidentiality requirements of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.

11. LATE TENDERS

- 11.1 Where a tender is submitted in competition and is received after the specified time then it shall be disqualified. Any such tender should be returned promptly to the tenderer who should be notified accordingly. The tender envelope may be opened to ascertain the name and address of the tenderer concerned
- 11.2 The only exception to Rule 10.1 where a late tender may be considered is if none of the other tenders received have been opened and no tenders have been received via the e-tender portal. The officer responsible for the opening of tenders must keep a record of the date and time of receipt of late tenders and the circumstances resulting in their acceptance.

12. ALTERATIONS

- 12.1 An external tender can be amended after it has been received and before it has been accepted only in order to correct an arithmetical error or other discrepancy made in good faith, subject to the following:
 - (a) The tenderer shall be given details of the error or discrepancy found during the examination of the tender and shall be given the opportunity of confirming the tender without amendment or withdrawing the tender;

OR

- (b) Amending the tender to correct genuine arithmetical errors provided that in this case, apart from these arithmetical errors, no other adjustment, revision or qualification is made. In this case written confirmation should be requested from the tenderer as to the error or discrepancy and confirming what the corrected entry should be
- 12.2 The appropriate Chief Officer must keep a record of all amendments made under this Rule and a copy of the record shall be sent to the Monitoring Officer.

13. ACCEPTANCE

- 13.1 Contracts shall be evaluated and awarded in accordance with the evaluation criteria issued with the tender documentation. Only those tenders that comply with the evaluation criteria shall be considered for acceptance
- 13.2 Tenders must be accepted on the basis of the "most economically advantageous" tender. The winning bidder will be determined by using the criteria and process communicated to bidders in the tender documentation
 - (a) For clarity, whole-life costs should be assessed when determining the most economically advantageous tender. In the case of capital works this includes taking into account the revenue impact of capital projects over a reasonable life for the asset (for example a slight increase in capital cost, such as energy management features, will reduce running costs)
 - (b) In the case of PFI projects, financial evaluation and acceptance will be on the basis of the agreed financial model and all other relevant documents used during the process to determine the most economically advantageous tender

- (c) In the case of tenders or quotes below the EU threshold and where two or more tenders or quotations provide the same level of quality at the same quoted cost, environmental considerations (transport, packaging, etc.) may be used to determine the successful bid if they are relevant to the contract. Prior to the award of the contract, a due diligence process must be carried out for all high risk/high value contracts to ensure the preferred bid is bona fide and that it is fully understood what the Council will receive and what payment is to be made
- 13.3 A tenderer who submits a qualified or conditional tender shall be given the opportunity to withdraw the qualification or condition without amendment to the tender. If the tenderer fails to do so, the tender must be rejected unless it is dealt with as an alteration in accordance with Rule 12.1
- 13.4 Prior to final contract award, the contractor must provide evidence of adequate insurance cover for public and employers' liability and professional indemnity insurance (where applicable) and produce such evidence during the life of the contract at the reasonable request of the Authorised Officer
- 13.5 All tenderers must be notified in writing of their success/failure in the tender process. Notifications must be made using template letters which must be issued electronically through the e-tender portal where the project was advertised on e-tender or via email for quotations of less than £5,000
- 13.6 It is important to notify companies as soon as possible after their elimination from a process. Therefore any company eliminated at the PQQ stage must be informed promptly using the Council's agreed templates which can be found on the Council's intranet.

For all procurements covered by EU Directives, a minimum of 10 calendar days (where notification is made electronically) mandatory standstill period is required between the communication of the notification of the award decision and contract conclusion, with day one being the day after the award decision is issued, via the e-tender portal or alternatively by email. The standstill period must end on a weekday (excluding bank holidays). This notification must be in the Council's agreed template which can be found on the procurement hub of e-voice and should be sent to all companies that remain in the process. This is to allow companies an opportunity to challenge the decision. The notification of the award decision, based on the most economically advantageous tender, must contain:

- (a) the award criteria;
- (b) the score the tender obtained against those award criteria;
- (c) the score the winning tenderer obtained;
- (d) the name of the winning tenderer;
- (e) the characteristics and relative advantages of the winning tender;
- (f) precise details of standstill period (i.e. key dates)

NOTE: Where notification is not issued electronically or is followed up by posted notification, the standstill period must be no less than 15 calendar days

13.7 All contracts must be recorded on the e-tender portal, and must include the name of the winning tenderer, bid value and performance monitoring information.

13.8 Upon completion, a formal contract award notice must be published in the Official Journal of the EU

14. <u>NEGOTIATIONS FOLLOWING RECEIPT OF TENDERS</u>

- 14.1 This Rule applies to all tenders
- 14.2 In all tenders, it is essential that the principles of probity, fairness and equal treatment are applied. Therefore negotiation following receipt of tenders or quotations is only permissible in limited circumstances in order to address minor issues since inappropriate negotiation may expose the Council to risk of challenge. The Section 151 Officer must be consulted before any negotiation is undertaken
- 14.3 Any negotiations shall be conducted on behalf of the Council by at least two appropriate officers and at least one must be from the Service concerned (Head of Service & Business Manager and/or an officer from Strategic Procurement). The Section 151 Officer shall be invited to send a representative to the negotiation meetings. A full written record shall be kept of the results of the negotiations, approved by the Chief Officer or his or her nominee personally, retained on a central file in the Service concerned and a copy sent to the Section 151 Officer. The appropriate Cabinet Portfolio Holder must also be kept informed
- 14.4 Should the tender be of a nature where there is likely to be a requirement for discussion regarding the proposals, specification and/or pricing model, the Competitive Dialogue process may provide the most appropriate procurement process
- 14.5 Negotiation must not be undertaken following receipt of tenders where the tender was subject to the EU Procurement Directives.
- 14.6 Should there be a need for any reason to amend the Council's requirements / specification (value engineer) all providers submitting a tender shall be informed and given the opportunity to re-submit their proposal. Should any of the following arise this will require a new procurement:
 - (a) amendments that could have resulted in a different outcome in the procurement:
 - (b) amendments that shift the economic balance of the contract in favour of the contractor. For example, a price increase could fall into this category;
 - (c) amendments which extend the scope of the contract considerably, such as a substantial increase in the duration or extension of the subject matter of the contract;
 - (d) where a new contractor replaces the original contractor, other than where this is allowed i.e. "if an event or set of circumstances occurs which a contracting authority acting "diligently" could not have foreseen",

15. NOMINATED/NAMED SUB-CONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

15.1 It is recommended that contracts are awarded to a single entity or lead contractor, who in turn will take contractual responsibility for the performance (and risks) the contractor will ensure that the insurances for any sub-contractors are equal to the minimum required by the Council. This responsibility lies with the contractor for all

sub-contractors in their supply-chain. This reduces the risk of the Council becoming party to disputes between contractors

16. **ENGAGEMENT OF CONSULTANTS**

- 16.1 Approval must be obtained from the appropriate Cabinet Portfolio Holder and the Chief Officer before engaging any consultant, consultancy firm or adviser.
- An Authorised Officer may only appoint external consultants or advisors providing professional or consulting services if such Services are not available within the Council or if Council officers providing them do not have the resources to meet the needs of the Service. Where such Services are available in-house, the authorised officer must consult with the Chief Officer or Head of Service before taking any decision to make an external appointment
- 16.3 Consideration should always be given to using approved frameworks, for example, established by YPO, ESPO, the Crown Commercial Service or the Homes and Communities Agency
- 16.4 External consultants and technical officers engaged to supervise contracts must follow these Rules as applicable and their contracts for Services must state this requirement
- 16.5 Procurement plans and/or tenders prepared by external consultants on behalf of the Council must be referred to the Strategic Procurement Team for approval and advice
- 16.6 All contracts for external consultants and advisors shall explicitly require that the consultants or advisors provide without delay any or all documents and records maintained by them relating to the services provided at the request of the Authorised Officer, and lodge all such documents and records with the appropriate officer at the end of the contract
- 16.7 The Authorised Officer shall ensure that any consultant working for the Council has appropriate indemnity insurance
- 16.8 Any consultant used by the Council shall be appointed in accordance with these Procedural Rules. Where the Council uses consultants to act on its behalf in relation to any procurement, then the Chief Officer shall ensure that the consultant/s carry out any procurement in accordance with these Procedural Rules and using the Council's standard terms and conditions of contract in any procurement that the consultant carries out. No consultant shall make any decision on whether to award a contract or who a contract should be awarded to. The Chief Officer shall ensure that the consultant's performance is monitored.
- 16.9 Where the engagement of a consultant is required to support a procurement process or related project, the consultant should sign an appropriately drafted confidentiality agreement and be bound by the confidentiality requirements of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.

17. CONTRACT CONDITIONS

- 17.1 Every contract which exceeds £30,000 in value, and in any other case where the Monitoring Officer so decides, shall be in writing in a form approved by the Legal Services team. Most contracts under £50,000 are not required to be executed under seal. Contracts where the total value is expected to exceed £50,000 must be sealed. In relation to IT contracts, those involving leasing arrangements where it is proposed to use a supplier's own terms and high risk and/or long-term contracts, advice should be sought from the Legal Services team via its email address at instructionsforlegal@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk. All written contracts shall specify:
 - (a) The Work, Goods, or Services to be provided or undertaken (including any appropriate output or technical specifications); and (unless in the case of an annual contract where the following information is not available);
 - (b) Full detail of all prices to be paid, detailing the frequency and method of calculation (if relevant) with a statement of discounts or other deductions; and
 - (c) The period or times within which the contract is to be performed
- 17.2 For contracts with an estimated value in excess of £50,000 for the execution of Works or for the supply of Goods or Services by a particular date or series of dates, the Authorised Officer shall assess the need to include provision for liquidated damages based on advice from the Legal Services team. Liquidated damages should only be included if they can be genuinely pre-estimated and are agreed with the contractor
- 17.3 Every written contract must contain a clause to secure that if the contractor fails to comply with its contractual obligations in whole or in part, or commits a fundamental breach of the contract, the Council may, without prejudice to any other remedy available to it:
 - (a) Terminate the contract, either wholly or to the extent of such default
 - (b) Complete the contract either itself or through another contractor or agent to make good the default
 - (c) Recover from the contractor any additional costs incurred in completing the contract to the original specification
- 17.4 The contract should require that if one or more sums of money is to be received by the Council, the contractor responsible for the payment of such sum or sums must pay interest in respect of late payment at the rate stated in the contract from the date when payment is due until the date when payment is received
- 17.5 It shall be a requirement that in the performance of the contract, the contractor must comply with the Equality Act 2010 including where relevant the Council's Public Sector Equality Duty, and shall provide the Council with information on request in relation to its compliance
- 17.6 In the performance of the contract, the contractor must comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and of any other relevant Acts, Regulations or Orders pertaining to health and safety
- 17.7 Contractors discharging Council functions must comply with the duty of Best Value under the Local Government Act 1999 (as amended)

- 17.8 All Goods, Services and Works must comply with any relevant European Union standards or specifications, code of practice, British Standard Specifications or Codes of Practice or European Union equivalents current at the date of the tender
- 17.9 Every contract over £50,000 for the execution of work or the supply of goods or services must include a clause in respect of the prevention of bribery
- 17.10 In every written contract for the execution of work or the supply of goods or services the following or equivalent clauses shall be inserted:

"The Supplier shall not assign, novate, sub-contract or otherwise dispose of this Agreement or any part thereof without the previous consent in writing of the Council such consent not to be unreasonably withheld."

This clause may be amended to meet the requirements of a specific contract but only following consultation with the Council's Legal Services team

- 17.11 Contracts shall contain details of relevant performance criteria, targets, standards and information on how the contract will be monitored, reviewed and managed by the Council. Benchmarking and/or price reduction clauses must be included, where appropriate, in contracts
- 17.12 All tenders and contracts must contain a notice relating to the Freedom of Information Act and a schedule that clearly identifies those sections or clauses that are commercially confidential within the terms of the Freedom of Information Act
- 17.13 If a contract is for the provision of business critical Services or supplies, officers may need to include clauses to the effect that the contractor maintains adequate business continuity processes in order to minimise the Council's exposure to risk
- 17.14 Other contractual conditions shall be included as required within these Rules, the Code of Practice or as directed by the Legal Services team

18. EXTENDING EXISTING CONTRACTS

- 18.1 Prior to extending a contract, the Authorised Officer must ensure that an options appraisal is undertaken to determine if it is in the interest of the Council to extend the current arrangement
- 18.2 The Authorised Officer, after consultation with the appropriate Chief Officer, may extend a contract subject to the extension being within the scope of the original scheme
- 18.3 Extensions to capital project contracts that will fall outside the scope of the original tender or scheme must go to the Cabinet for approval. This does not apply to operational contracts for goods and services that are not key decisions (i.e. where annual or periodic contracts are to be extended). The definition of a key decision is set out in Part 2; Section 13 subsection 13.2 of the Council's Constitution. In such cases the Authorised Officer or the Cabinet must, before taking the decision, consider tendering or negotiating the additional work, and ensure that any additional required funding is secured. In addition to obtaining approval to extend the contract, approval to increase the budget available for the project must be

obtained in all cases where the increased contract amount would cause an overspending against the existing budget. Also, if the contract extension fundamentally or significantly changes the nature of the project, this should be reported to Members before an extension is agreed. A written record of the decision with reasons should be approved and retained by the Chief Officer concerned or his or her nominee and the record must be retained on a central file in the relevant Service. A copy should also be sent to the Monitoring Officer

- 18.4 If the original contract was subject to the EU procurement regulations, the contract can only be extended within the parameters identified in the original EU contract notice, or if the notice explicitly contained provision for extension
- 18.5 If the contract was not subject to the EU procurement regulations, any extension must not take the total value of the contract above the EU thresholds
- 18.6 If the contract was awarded as a framework agreement, the total framework period, including any extensions, cannot exceed four years except in exceptional circumstances relating to the subject of the framework agreement. For example, a longer duration could be justified in order to ensure effective competition if four years would not be sufficient to provide return on investment
- 18.7 The length of call-offs under a framework agreement should not last for more than four years. The length of call-offs, as with other contracts, should be appropriate to the purchases in question and should reflect value for money considerations. However, individual call-offs from the framework can extend beyond the end date of the framework itself
- 18.8 When negotiating a contract extension the Authorised Officer must make every effort to negotiate improved contract terms with regard to the cost and quality of the goods, services and works being delivered through the contract. The terms agreed must be confirmed in writing and the Contracts Register must be updated accordingly to show the extended contract period.

19. CANCELLATION OR DETERMINATION

- 19.1 In every written contract a clause shall be inserted to ensure that the Council shall be entitled to cancel the contract, and to recover from the contractor the amount of any loss resulting from such cancellation, if the contractor or its employees or agents (with or without its knowledge):
 - (a) does anything improper to influence the Council to award the contractor any contract; and/or
 - (b) commits an offence under the Bribery Act 2010 in connection with the contract or under Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972.

NOTE: The provisions of the Bribery Act that came into force into 2010 now means that the Council may commit the following offences:

Section 1 – bribing another person

Section 2 – offences relating to being bribed; and

Section 6 – bribing a foreign public official

If the Council commits any of these offences, then senior officers (defined under S.14 of the Act as a director, manager secretary or other similar officer in the case of a body corporate can be held personally liable and may be subject to 10 years' imprisonment. In addition, Section 7 of the Act creates a new offence of failing to prevent bribery, which again relates to the Council and in this instance the Council could find itself liable to an unlimited fine.

20. SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTS

- 20.1 Every contract that exceeds £50,000 must be sealed on behalf of the Council. Contracts below £50,000 can be signed by the appropriate Chief Officer or their authorised officer
- 20.2 All contracts must be concluded before the supply, service or construction work begins, except in exceptional circumstances, and then only with the written consent of the Monitoring Officer. An award letter is insufficient.
- 20.3 The Authorised Officer responsible for securing signature of the contract must ensure that the person signing for the other contracting party has authority to bind it.

21. REGISTERS OF CONTRACTS

- 21.1 The Strategic Procurement Team shall keep:
 - (a) a Contracts Register setting down details of contracts awarded in the preceding twelve months, together with details of those contracts above £50,000
 - (b) A copy of the Contracts Register will be published on the Council's website
 - (c) A payments register of all contracts in a form approved by the Section 151 Officer. The payments register may be maintained electronically. The Register shall for each contract, specify the name of the contractor, the works to be executed or the Goods to be supplied and the contract value. The Register shall contain a record of all payments made individually and cumulatively to contractors and sub-contractors
- 21.2 Approval can be sought from the Section 151 Officer by a Chief Officer or Head of Service where it is more appropriate to monitor contracts against approved expenditure budgets where applicable. Officers monitoring these budgets must ensure that the relevant statutory requirements are adhered to and that contract values do not exceed EU thresholds for competitive tendering.

22. SEALING

22.1 Where contracts are sealed as a deed the Common Seal of the Council shall be affixed to the contract and witnessed by a Council Member of the Cabinet and by an authorised signatory

- 22.2 Every Council sealing will be consecutively numbered, recorded and signed by the person witnessing the seal. The seal must not be affixed without the authority of Cabinet or of a Chief Officer acting under delegated powers. A contract must be sealed where:
 - (a) The Council wishes to enforce the contract for more than six years after its end; or
 - (b) The price paid or received under the contract is a nominal price and does not reflect the value of the Goods or Services; or
 - (c) Where there is any doubt about the authority of the person signing for the other contracting party; or
 - (d) Where the total value is expected to exceed £50,000.

23. BONDS AND PARENT COMPANY GUARANTEES

- 23.1 For contracts over £50,000, a performance bond may be required if considered appropriate by the relevant Authorised Officer, the Section 151 Officer or other appropriate Chief Officer. The decision will be based on the risks associated with the contract, for example:
 - (a) The value of the contract,
 - (b) The type of goods / services / works being procured,
 - (c) The payment profile for the contract,
 - (d) The financial strength of the company,
 - (e) Affordability and proportionality

The security required may be a performance bond or some other form of financial or performance guarantee. Affordability and proportionality must always be taken into consideration when deciding whether some form of financial security is appropriate and required.

- 23.2 For contracts over £100,000 the contractor must provide a bond from a source approved by the relevant Authorised Officer for completing the contract except where the relevant Authorised Officer in consultation with the Monitoring Officer decides that this is not necessary, after receipt of a completed risk analysis inclusive of a business continuity questionnaire
- 23.3 At the discretion of the relevant Authorised Officer, a cash sum can be held in the place of a bond, either as a direct payment or set off against initial invoices received by the Council from the provider. Approval for this shall be requested in writing by the relevant Authorised Officer and details of which, when agreed with the Monitoring Officer, forwarded to the Section 151 Officer
- 23.4 Where it is proposed to make stage or other payments in advance of receiving the whole of the subject matter of the contract and there is concern about the stability of the contractor, a bond shall be required regardless of the contract value
- 23.5 A parent company guarantee is necessary when the contractor is a subsidiary of a parent company and:

- (a) The total value exceeds £100,000; or
- (b) Award is based on evaluation of the parent company; or
- (c) There is some concern about the stability of the contractor.
- 23.6 Where a bond is required the tender documents must contain provision for this cost to be identified separately
- 23.7 If the contract period covers a number of years the Authorised Officer shall determine after consultation with the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer whether or not the bond is to be calculated by reference to the total contract sum over the duration of the contract or by reference to the annual value of the contract
- 23.8 As stages of the contract are completed the value of the bond can be reduced at the discretion of the Authorised Officer with the approval of the Monitoring Officer

24. OTHER REQUIREMENTS

- 24.1 The Authorised Officer must consult with the Section 151 Officer prior to entering into any lease or credit arrangement which has a capital cost or implications. The cost must first be approved for inclusion in the Capital Programme
- 24.2 The Authorised Officer must inform the Section 151 Officer immediately of any claims (or anticipated claims) by or against contractors that are the subject of dispute between the Council and the contractor.

ANNEX 1

EXCEPTIONS TO CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

This 'exceptions form' must be completed for every instance where a Chief Officer approves an exception from these Rules for contracts with a total value of £5,000 or more, in accordance with 2.3 above (The form must adequately document the reasons for the exception and an electronic copy must be retained by the Service concerned. A copy of each completed form is automatically forwarded to the Chief Officer concerned, the Monitoring Officer, Internal Audit and the Strategic Procurement Team where a record of all exceptions is maintained). The Chief Officer concerned is responsible for keeping the appropriate Cabinet Portfolio Holder informed

Title of Contract:	Contract Value:
Date:	
Description of Good or Service:	
Reason why the exception is being sought:	
Reason why the exception is being sought.	
Responsible Officer:	
1/01: 1.05	<u> </u>
Approved (Chief Officer):	Date:

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 - FIRST DRAFT SAVINGS PLANS

Submitted by: Executive Director (Resources and Support Services)

Portfolio: Finance and Resources

Wards(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

To inform the Committee of the current proposals being considered to balance the 2015/16 revenue budget.

Recommendations

- a) That the Committee note the proposals as set out in the appendix to the report.
- b) That the Committee identify any areas where further information is required for consideration at its meeting in January.
- c) That the Committee suggest any further areas of savings that should be considered.

Reasons

To enable the Committee to review the proposals and to determine whether further information is required on any of the proposals.

1. Background

- 1.1 The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), approved by Cabinet on 15 October 2014 and considered at your last meeting on 5 November indicated that there would be a budget "gap" of £1.850m in respect of 2015/16 and that this would need to be closed in order to produce a balanced budget.
- 1.2 There have been a number of changes to the "gap" since October, increasing it by £298,000 to £2.148m. These are set out in the table below.

Change	Amount
	£'000
Reduction in Housing Benefits and Local Council Tax Support	80
Administration Subsidy payable in 2015/16 as notified by the	
Department of Work and Pensions and Department for Communities	
and Local Government (DCLG)	
Reduction in rental income in respect of asset disposals agreed at	175
October's Cabinet meeting	
Adjustment to Revenue Support Grant following a change to the	16
Business Rates Multiplier for 2015/16 announced by DCLG	
Reduction in fees and charges income projections	27
Total	298

2. <u>Proposed Savings and Funding Strategies to eliminate the Budget Gap for 2015/16</u>

2.1 The Budget Review Group have been identifying and considering ways of eliminating this gap. As a result of this work, a number of savings and funding strategies have been identified and agreed with managers as being feasible and sustainable. The proposals are outlined in the table below and set out in detail in the attached Appendix to enable the Committee to review them and determine whether any further information is required on any of the proposals for consideration at its meeting in January. Further work is still ongoing to identify further savings.

Category	Amount	Comments
	£'000	
Procurement	96	Smarter procurement and reductions in the amount of supplies procured
Additional Income	141	Includes new sources of income and additional income arising from increased activity. This amount is additional to the amount included in the MTFS in respect of a general increase in fees and charges
Staffing Efficiencies	527	No redundancies are anticipated to arise from these proposals
Good Housekeeping Efficiencies Service Reductions, Changes in Base Budgets		Various savings arising from more efficient use of budgets
Alternative Sources of Finance / Other	1,119	Additional contribution to the revenue budget from New Homes Bonus funding. Additional Business Rates retained, savings from advanced payments of superannuation contributions, effect of forecast Council Tax Base increase. Details of the level of any council tax freeze grant or council tax "caps" have not yet been announced. Figures are based on the national arrangements in place for 2014/15. Details for 2015/16 are expected to be announced as part of the Local Government Financial Settlement on 17/18 December
Total	2,148	

3. <u>Timetable</u>

3.1 Set out in the table below are the key dates of the events still to take place before the budget for 2015/16 is finally approved.

When	Who	What
16 December	FRAPSC	First review of draft savings plans
17-19 December	All	Local Government Financial Settlement
13 January	Scrutiny Café (all members)	Scrutiny of the first draft of the overall budget proposals
14 January	Cabinet	Consideration of draft budget proposals
21 January	FRAPSC	Scrutiny of the draft budget proposals
4 February	Cabinet	Final budget proposals to be recommended for approval by Full Council
25 February	Full Council	To approve the budget

Appendix

Ref.	Service Area	Description	£000's	% of Budget Line(s)	Detail
		P	rocurement		
P1	Business Improvement and Partnerships	Grants and Third Sector Commissioning	23	9.7%	Reduction in budgetary requirement from collaboration with Staffordshire County Council regarding debt, benefit, and consumer information advice services
P2	Central Services	Land Charges Third Party Costs	8	16.7%	Reduction in fees payable to Staffordshire County Council for Highways searches
P3	Communications	Multi-Functional Devices	17	28.3%	Savings from negotiation of extension to existing contract (November to March) - further savings of £33,000 in 2016/17
P4	Communications	Printing and Publicity	10	10.0%	Savings generated from the centralisation of the Council's print and publicity budgets and the resulting challenges to purchasing
P5	Finance	Bank Contract	38	69.1%	Procurement savings resulting from tendering exercise for a new banking contract
			96		
		•		=	
			Income		
<u> </u>	Acceta				
	Assets	Public Transport Departure Fees	8	25.0%	Re-alignment of budget to match actual income received
l2	Assets	Public Transport Departure Fees Additional Rental Income from Civic Offices	8 25	25.0% 7.1%	Re-alignment of budget to match actual income received Additional rental income from Civic Offices re. SSOTP NHS
		Additional Rental Income from Civic			
12	Assets	Additional Rental Income from Civic Offices Hackney Carriage and Private Hire	25	7.1%	Additional rental income from Civic Offices re. SSOTP NHS To reflect actual income expected from cyclical payments of
I2 I3	Assets Central Services	Additional Rental Income from Civic Offices Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences	25 20	7.1% 10.1%	Additional rental income from Civic Offices re. SSOTP NHS To reflect actual income expected from cyclical payments of three year licence fees
12 13 14	Assets Central Services Operational Services	Additional Rental Income from Civic Offices Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences Bereavement Services Income	25 20 28	7.1% 10.1% 2.4%	Additional rental income from Civic Offices re. SSOTP NHS To reflect actual income expected from cyclical payments of three year licence fees Increase of fees above inflation
12 13 14 15	Assets Central Services Operational Services Operational Services	Additional Rental Income from Civic Offices Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences Bereavement Services Income Streetscene Income Planning Fees and Building Control	25 20 28 10	7.1% 10.1% 2.4% 66.7%	Additional rental income from Civic Offices re. SSOTP NHS To reflect actual income expected from cyclical payments of three year licence fees Increase of fees above inflation Additional income generated from new customers A net saving from increased planning applications offset by increased costs required to be budgeted for regarding Building
12 13 14 15 16	Assets Central Services Operational Services Operational Services Planning	Additional Rental Income from Civic Offices Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences Bereavement Services Income Streetscene Income Planning Fees and Building Control Costs	25 20 28 10 10	7.1% 10.1% 2.4% 66.7% 3.4%	Additional rental income from Civic Offices re. SSOTP NHS To reflect actual income expected from cyclical payments of three year licence fees Increase of fees above inflation Additional income generated from new customers A net saving from increased planning applications offset by increased costs required to be budgeted for regarding Building Control
12 13 14 15 16	Assets Central Services Operational Services Operational Services Planning Recycling and Fleet	Additional Rental Income from Civic Offices Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences Bereavement Services Income Streetscene Income Planning Fees and Building Control Costs Trade Waste	25 20 28 10 10	7.1% 10.1% 2.4% 66.7% 3.4%	Additional rental income from Civic Offices re. SSOTP NHS To reflect actual income expected from cyclical payments of three year licence fees Increase of fees above inflation Additional income generated from new customers A net saving from increased planning applications offset by increased costs required to be budgeted for regarding Building Control Net increase in income receivable

2015/16 Savings and Funding Strategies Being Considered (will require robustness checks and final review)

Appendix

, U	T		ı	1	
ປ ນ O Ref.	Service Area	Description	£000's	% of Budget Line(s)	Detail
18		Staffing	Related Effic	ciencies	
S1	Assets	Restructure of Service	20	4.4%	Additional savings from finalisation of restructure of the Assets Service
S2	Business Improvement and Partnerships	Reduced Hours	8	5.2%	Reduction in hours of Business Improvement Officer (Risk and Insurance)
S3	Central Services	Flexible Retirements	32	11.5%	Flexible retirement of Senior Administration Assistant/Mayor's Secretary and Licensing Officer
S4	Communications	Flexible Retirement	12	10.9%	Flexible retirement of Design and Print Team Leader
S5	Customer and ICT Services	Flexible Retirement	38	8.0%	Flexible retirement of Head of Service
S6	Customer and ICT Services	Reduced Hours	6	9.4%	Reduction in hours of Clerical Assistant post in the Creditors Section
S7	Environmental Health	Temporary Contract	12	16.0%	Replacement of full time Environmental Warden (Pest Control) post with seasonal post for 6 months per annum
S8	Finance	Flexible Retirement and Reduced Hours	46	13.3%	Flexible retirement of Principal Accountant/Clerical Assistant, and reduction in hours of Principal Accountant
S9	Finance	Car Leasing Scheme	7	5.5%	Car leases not renewed following expiry
S10	Housing and Regeneration	Flexible Retirement	28	18.3%	Flexible retirement of Economic Development Officer
S11	Human Resources	Recruitment Adverts and Other Items	7	17.5%	Reduction in budgetary requirement to advertise vacancies and for other items
S12	Human Resources	Terms and Conditions Review	50	*	Review of employee terms and conditions
S13	Leisure and Cultural	Employee Hours at Kidsgrove Sports Centre	20	6.8%	Reduction in total employee hours at Kidsgrove Sports Centre
S14	Leisure and Cultural	Vacant Post	18	9.3%	Part replacement of General Manager post with marketing expertise
S15	Leisure and Cultural	Sports and Active Lifestyles Review	50	*	Total savings of £100,000 over 2015/16 and 2016/17 from review of staffing of the service
S16	Operational Services	Retirement	8	4.4%	Full retirement of Assistant Environmental Officer
S17	Operational Services	Temporary Contract	19	13.2%	Temporary contract of Landscape Technical Assistant to not be renewed (25% of full £26k cost re. Capital)
S18	Operational Services	Reduced Hours	5	9.3%	Reduction in hours of Community Warden
S19	Operational Services	Park Attendant Service	70	*	Total savings of £138,000 over 2015/16 and 2016/17 from review of service, management of the service and controllable supplies and services budgets
S20	Operational Services	Retirement	10	33.3%	Retirement of Public Convenience Attendant

Α	n	n	e	n	d	ix
$\overline{}$	ν	ν	ᆫ		u	

Ref.	Service Area	Description	£000's	% of Budget Line(s)	Detail
S21	Operational Services	Bereavement Services Restructure	22	10.7%	Restructure within Bereavement Services including retirement and flexible retirement
S22	Planning	Planning Officer posts	15	2.7%	Saving from replacement of Senior Planning Officer post with Planning Officer post and employment of new starters on lower spinal column points than leavers
S23	Planning	Reduced Hours	5	3.0%	Reduction in hours of Secretary
S24	Resources and Support Services	Reduced Hours	3	2.3%	Reduction in hours of Secretary
S25	Revenues and Benefits	Reduced Hours	5	1.0%	Reduction in hours of Clerical Assistant (Revenues Billing)
S26	Revenues and Benefits	Flexible Retirement	11	0.2%	Flexible retirement of Revenues Assistant
			527		

		Good Housekeeping/General	Other Saving	gs/Changes	in Base Budgets
G1	Assets	Engineers - Other Fees for Services	2	50.0%	Reduction in budgetary requirement for other fees for services
G2	Business Improvement and Partnerships	Grants and Third Sector Commissioning	7	21.2%	Reduction in small and community chest grants
G3	Business Improvement and Partnerships	Other Fees for Services, Equipment, Seminars, Allowances	6	42.9%	Reduction in budgetary requirement for other fees for services, equipment, seminars and allowances
G4	Central Services	Elections	36	26.5%	Saving from Running Borough Elections Alongside Parliamentary Election in 2015/16 (one off saving).
G5	Communications	Jazz and Blues Festival	2	40.0%	Reduction in contribution to the Town Centre Partnership re. Jazz and Blues Festival, remainder of contribution to be removed in 2016/17
G6	Communications	Computer Hardware, Other Fees for Services, Overtime	3	50.0%	Reduction in budgetary requirement for computer hardware, other fees for services and overtime
G7	Communications	Print Room Joint Venture with Stoke-on- Trent City Council	8	100.0%	Removal of requirement to contribute to the equipment replacement fund following the introduction of a print and associated services joint venture with Stoke-on-Trent City Council
G8	Customer and ICT Services	Review of the Customer Service Centres	10	2.1%	Review of the Guildhall and Kidsgrove Customer Service Centres (further £20,000 saving to be achieved in 2016/17)
G9	Customer and ICT Services	Reduction in Computer Support Services and Software Costs	13	2.6%	Reduction in budgetary requirement for computer support services and computer software costs
a) G10 G10	Customer and ICT Services	Reduction in Staffordshire County Council Network Contract	4	30.8%	Reduction in budgetary requirement for Staffordshire County Council network charges

2015/16 Savings and Funding Strategies Being Considered (will require robustness checks and final review)

Appendix

G12 E G13 F G14 F G15 F	Environmental Health Environmental Health Finance Housing and Regeneration Housing and	Pest Control Vehicle Lease, Fuel, Equipment Travelling Allowances, Other Fees for Services, Equipment Business Rates on Council Properties Christmas Lights	3 10 42 12	12.0% 18.2% 4.7% 27.9%	Reduction in budgetary requirement for vehicle lease, fuel and equipment purchases Reduction in budgetary requirement for travelling allowances, other fees for services and equipment Reduction in business rates for which the Council is liable (Museum and Art Gallery, Crematorium and Central Depot)
G13 F G14 F G15 F	Finance Housing and Regeneration Housing and	Services, Equipment Business Rates on Council Properties Christmas Lights	42	4.7%	other fees for services and equipment Reduction in business rates for which the Council is liable (Museum and Art Gallery, Crematorium and Central Depot)
G14 F G15 F	Housing and Regeneration Housing and	Christmas Lights			(Museum and Art Gallery, Crematorium and Central Depot)
G15 F	Regeneration Housing and		12	27 0%	
				21.3/0	Reduction in budget provision for Town Centre Christmas lights
	Regeneration	Town Centre Partnership Contribution	7	25.0%	Phased removal of contribution to the Town Centre Partnership (£7,500 in 2015/16 and £22,500 in 2016/17)
	Housing and Regeneration	Homelessness Projects	19	29.2%	Reduction in budgetary requirement for Homelessness projects
G17 I	Internal Audit	Other Fees for Services, Training, Equipment	2	25.0%	Reduction in budgetary requirement for other fees for service training and equipment
G18 L	Leisure and Cultural	Community Centres	14	20.0%	Payment of business rates, electricity, water and trade waste collection by all occupied Community Centres and reduction i grant given by the Council
G19 L	Leisure and Cultural	Community Recreation Service Transport	10	100.0%	Non-renewal of lease agreement for transport in the service
G20 L	Leisure and Cultural	New Victoria Theatre Grant	10	10.2%	Phased reduction of grant given over a 5 year period
G21 (Operational Services	Merrial Street Toilets	10	55.6%	Planned closure and subsequent reduction in controllable costs - utilities, overtime, maintenance, statutory inspections
G22 (Operational Services	Landscape General Efficiencies	2	40.0%	Reductions in budgetary requirement for other fees for services, legal fees, travelling allowances and overtime
	Operational Services (Admin)	Employee Allowances, Equipment Purchase	5	13.5%	Reduction in budgetary requirement re. employee allowances and equipment purchase
G24 F	Recycling and Fleet	Waste Transfer Station	15	15.0%	Change in disposal legislation (Staffordshire County Council)
G25 F	Recycling and Fleet	Waste Strategy	5	6.7%	Equipment purchase (containers), one off saving for 2015/16
	Revenues and Benefits	Cash Collections and Training	8	14.3%	Reduction in budgetary requirement for cash collections and training

265

Ref.	Service Area	Description	£000's	% of Budget Line(s)	Detail
		Alternative	Sources of Fi	nance/Other	
A1	Corporate	Business Rates Retention Scheme	200	5.3%	Increase in business rates retainable by the Council as per NNDR1 calculations
A2	Corporate	Invest to Save Savings	23	**	Savings following financing of invest to save schemes (e.g. Mayoral vehicle and weed control mechanical equipment)
A3	Corporate	Superannuation Lump Sum	61	6.1%	Discount for payment in advance of superannuation lump sums of £76k, less lost interest of £15k
A4	Corporate	Council Tax	133	**	Details of the level of any freeze grant or council tax "caps" have not yet been announced, These figures are based on the arrangements in place for 2014/15
A5	Corporate	Council Tax Base	65	1.1%	Increase in Council Tax Base (increase in residential properties from 34,890 to 35,255 at £176.93 per property)
A6	Corporate	New Homes Bonus contribution	421	60.6%	Further additional funding to be received in 2014/15 (split with capital) and change of split with capital
A7	Corporate	Grants to Parishes	15	25%	Reduction in the contribution given to Parish Councils per head for concurrent functions
A8	Corporate	Revenue Investment Fund	50	50.0%	Reduction of contribution to the Revenue Investment Fund to £50k per annum
A9	Corporate	Minimum Revenue Provision	151	100%	Vehicle and equipment finance leases re. International Financial Reporting Standards adjustments
			1,119		

Grand Total

2,148

* Unable to determine % at current time

** Not applicable

This page is intentionally left blank

Members: Sandra Hambleton, David Stringer, Amelia Rout, John Taylor, Stephen Sweeney, Tracey Peers, Andrew Fear, Nigel Jones and Derrick Huckfield

FINANCE, RESOURCES AND PARTNERSHIPS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN



Chair: Councillor Paul Waring Vice Chair: Councillor Rob Wallace

Portfolio Holder(s) covering the Committee's remit:
Councillor Mike Stubbs (Communications, Policy and Partnerships)
Councillor Mrs Elizabeth Shenton (Finance and Resources)
Councillor Terry Turner (Economic Regeneration, Business and Town Centres)

Work Plan correct as at: Friday 21st November 2014

Remit:

Finance, Resources and Partnership Scrutiny Committee is responsible for:

- Communications and consultation
- Council structure and democracy and constitutional review
- Customer contact and customer service centres
- Member development and support
- · Neighbourhood and locality working
- Partnerships: Newcastle Partnership Strategic Board
 - Performance management and monitoring
 - Revenues and benefits

- Putting people first
- · Risk champion
- Transformation programme
- Accountancy
- Budget
- · Capital and revenue expenditure
- Efficiency savings
- Financial monitoring

- Health and safety champion
- Human Resources
- Information and communication technology
- Procurement champion
- Treasury management
- Workforce development
- Co-operative Council

ນັ	Date of Meeting	Item	Reason for Undertaking
Page 54		Financial and Performance Management Report to end of Quarter 4 (March) 2014	To provide Finance, Resources & Partnerships (FRAP) Scrutiny Committee with the Financial and Performance Review, Fourth Quarter 2013/2014
	17 th June 2014 (agenda dispatch	Parish and Town Councils Review of Concurrent Funding	To present Committee with proposals for a review of the existing funding arrangements dedicated to Parish/Town Council concurrent functions
	Friday 6 th June)	Council Plan (to be submitted to July Cabinet)	To receive developments of the new Council Plan 2014-16
		Constitutional Review Working Group Future Work Plans	To ask FRAP Scrutiny Committee to nominate members of the Scrutiny Committee to sit on the Constitutional Review Working Group
		Finance, Resources and Partnership Scrutiny Committee Work Plan	To discuss the work plan and potential topics that Committee Members would like to scrutinise over the forthcoming year
		,	,
	1 st September 2014 (agenda dispatch	Portfolio Holder Question Time	Opportunity for the Committee to question the Portfolio Holders on their priorities and work objectives for the next six months and to address any issues or concerns that they may be facing
	22 nd August 2014)	Keele Golf Course	To provide Members with information about the outcome of a marketing exercise which sought to identify a range of potential options for the interim use of the former Keele Golf Course
		Quarter One Financial & Performance Review	To provide Scrutiny with the Financial and Performance Review, Quarter One 2014/2015
		Supplementary report to comments from Scrutiny on the Quarter 4 Performance Report	To present to Scrutiny a report in response to questions and comments raised at the last meeting on 17 June 2014
		Council Plan 2014-16	Cabinet approved version of the Council Plan to be presented to Scrutiny
		Finance, Resources and Partnership Scrutiny Committee Work Plan	To discuss the work plan and potential topics that Committee Members would like to scrutinise over the forthcoming year

Date of Meeting	Item	Reason for Undertaking
5 th November 2014 (agenda dispatch	Medium Term Financial Strategy	To set out the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2015/2016 and the following four years, indicating the projected budgets for these years and the shortfall compared to available resources
24 th October 2014)	Quarter Two Financial & Performance Review	To provide Scrutiny with the Financial and Performance Review, Quarter Two 2014/2015
	Constitution Review Working Group	The Constitution Review Working Group wishes to put forward a number of recommendations to the Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee and to Full Council
	Parish/Town Councils – Review of Concurrent Funding Task and Finish Group	To receive recommendations from the Task and Finish Group around the future arrangements for concurrent funding of Town/Parish Councils in the Borough
	Finance, Resources and Partnership Scrutiny Committee Work Plan	To discuss the work plan and potential topics that Committee Members would like to scrutinise over the forthcoming year
4 th December 2014 (agenda dispatch 21 st	Revenue Budgets 2015/2016 – First Draft Savings Plan	To review progress on the completion of the revenue and capital budgets for 2015/2016 to enable a robust and affordable budget for 2015/2016 to be approved
November 2014) MOVED TO:- 16 th December 2014	Constitution Review Working Group	To review the updated version of Appendix 12 (Contract Procedural Rules) of the Constitution prior to consideration by Full Council
(agenda dispatch 5 th December 2014)	Finance, Resources & Partnerships Scrutiny Committee Work Plan	To discuss the work plan and potential topics that Committee Members would like to scrutinise over the forthcoming year
IO	INT MEETING WITH ECONOMIC DEVELO	OPMENT AND ENTERPRISE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
16 th December 2014 (agenda dispatch	Asset Management Strategy	To seek Committee Members views on the finance and resource implications of the draft Asset Management Strategy 2014-2017
5 th December 2014)	Capital Strategy 2015/2016	Approval of how the Council deploys its capital resources in order to assist it to achieve its corporate and service objectives
13 th January 2015 (agenda dispatch 2 nd January 2015)	Budget Scrutiny Café	The café is an information gathering workshop and will give Members a chance to ask any questions relating to the budget setting process

	_	τ	J
	2	ט	
(2	
	(D	
	C	5	1
	C))

Date of Meeting	Item	Reason for Undertaking
20 21 st January 2015	Budget Scrutiny Café, 13 th January 2015	To consider feedback received from the Budget Scrutiny Café held on the 13 th January 2015
(agenda dispatch 9 th January 2015)	Treasury Management Strategy 2015/2016	To approve the Strategy to be followed by the Council in carrying out its treasury management activity in the forthcoming year 2015/2016
	Scale of Fees and Charges 2015/2016	Review of the fees and charges which the Council makes in order to keep them in line with the cost of service provision and to establish the amounts to be included in the 2015/2016 budget
	Quarter Three Financial & Performance Review	To provide Scrutiny with the Financial and Performance Review, Quarter Three 2014/2015
	Draft Revised Capital Budget 2015/2016	To consider the final version of the Revenue and Capital Budget 2015/16
	Finance, Resources & Partnership Scrutiny Committee Work Plan	To discuss the work plan and potential topics that Committee Members would like to scrutinise over the forthcoming year
16 th March 2015	Annual Work Plan	To review outcomes, recommendations, feedback and further action required on items submitted over the past twelve months
(agenda dispatch 6 th March 2015)	Portfolio Holder Question Time	Opportunity for the Committee to question the Portfolio Holders on their priorities and work objectives for the next six months and to address any issues or concerns that they may be facing
	Quarter Four Financial & Performance Review	To provide Scrutiny with the Financial and Performance Review, Quarter Four 2014/2015

Task and Finish Groups:	Parish and Town Councils – Review of Concurrent Funding
Future Task and Finish Groups:	
Suggestions for Potential Future Items:	Constitution Review Working Group – Future Work Plans

	Monday 1 st September 2014, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
	Wednesday 5 th November 2014, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS:	Thursday 4 th December 2014, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
	Tuesday 13 th January 2015, 7.00pm, Council Suite (Budget Scrutiny Café)
	Wednesday 21 st January 2015, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
	Monday 16 th March 2015, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1

	Joint meeting with Economic, Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Tuesday 16 th
	December 2014, 7.00pm, Council Chamber to discuss the Asset Management
	Strategy
ADDITIONAL/JOINT MEETINGS:	Joint meeting with Economic, Development and Enterprise Scrutiny to be
	arranged to discuss the Ryecroft Regeneration and Redevelopment Project

	Wednesday 18 th June 2014, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
	Wednesday 23 rd July 2014, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
	Wednesday 10 th September 2014, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
DATES AND TIMES OF CABINET MEETINGS:	Wednesday 15 th October 2014, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
	Wednesday 12 th November 2014, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
	Wednesday 10 th December 2014, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
	Wednesday 14 th January 2015, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
	Wednesday 4 th February 2015, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1 (BUDGET)
	Wednesday 25 th March 2015, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1
	Wednesday 24 th June 2015, 7.00pm, Committee Room 1

This page is intentionally left blank